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THE COURT: At this time, I would call the
case of the Town of Essex and James Morgan, Jr.,

a Superintendent of Highways against the Lewis
Family Farm, Inc. Please note your appearances
for the record.

MR. HARP: My name is Darrell W. Harp, 12
Rolling Brock Drive, Clifton Park, New York
12065. I'm special counsel for the Town of Essex
and the Highway Superlntend@nt

MR. BRENNAN: Joseph Br@nnan for the

defendant, Lewis Family Farm, Inc.

MR. COOK: David Cook for the defendant
also.

THE COURT: Please be seated. We're here
for the taking of proof to be offered in
connection with certain temporary relief .
requested, - in particular, a preliminary
injunction.

At the outset, I would propose that we will,
of course, begin with the movant's proof T
wquld like to limit what testimony is offered to
that of any expert witness and any other witness
the parties want to offer, lay person or the

iike, but I don't want this to become cumulative
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where we're offering a number of lay witnesses,

and I reserve the right to limit the proof in

regard to that. Because there are certain issues

in contention, I thought it was necessary that we

have at least some taking of proof here.

I've read what you have submitted to the
Court already, and I believe thaﬁ T understand
the argument. What we will do is we'll proceed
forward with the proof the parties want to offer.
We will conclude tﬁen with afgﬁment fxom'couﬁéel
with regard to theit respective requests.

Mr. Harp, is there a witness you wish to
call?

MR. HARP: Yes. TI'd likelto call the town
supervisor,rRonaid Jackson.

THE COURT: Is there any request with regard
to witnesses in the courtroom?

MR. BRENNAN: I would request, Judge, that
anybody that may be called by either party be
excluded during the testimony of any witness.

THE COURT: Mr, Harp?

"MR. HARP: I'm going to only call
Mr. Jackson unless there is a dispute relative to

the pictures, which are put in affidavit.
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THE COURT: I think you're acting in good
faith so‘I'm~not going to excuse someone 1f this
is your witness.

MR. HARP: I‘would like to have these marked
please.

(Pecple's Exhibit 1 - photographs - marked for

identification.)

RONALD E. JACKSON
called hereln as a w1tness, belng duly sworn,

testified as follows:

DIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. HARP

lQ. Mr. Jackson, would you please state your name and
your position relative to this matter.
A, My name 1is Ronald E. Jackson. I'm the Supervisor

of the Town of Essex.

Q. How long have you been the Supervisor of the Town
of Essex?
A, I'm working on year number six.

Q. And are you familiar with the situation that
we're in court here?

A. Yes, sir, I am.

Q. Relative thereto, did you take any pictures

récently?
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" R. JACKSCN - DX by MR. HARP ~ E A
A. Yes, sir, I did. On'Sunday, I went.out to take
some photos showing the drainage situation, a series of
photos and then the last photo was a picture of the woods
that are part of the Lewis Family Farm that are nbrtheast
of the area in question, in case the issue arises as to
why it didn't drift in this year. The only blizzard we

had was from the northeast and these woods protected the

area —— _
MR. BRENNAN: Your Honor, I obiect, as this
is uniéépénsive to ﬁhé questicn; o |
THE COQURT: Well, it is. I'11 sustain the
objection unless there's a little more foundation
laid.
Q. Could you please look at Exhibit No. 1.
A, Yeé, sir,
Q. Would you'maxk it Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 please?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you recognize those photographs?
A. Yes, sir, I do. o
Q. The first two, did you take?
A, No, sir. Mr. Morgan's department, I don't know

who in the HighWay Department took it, but the Highway
Department took these photos.

Q. The next four, did you take those pictures?
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R, JACKSON - DX by MR, HARP 7
A. Yes, sir, I did.
Q. You just indicated that you took them on this
past Sunday; is that correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Would you go through -- would it help if we gaVé
the Judge a copy maybe? |
THE COURT: I can't look at them until
they're admitted into evidencé. But once they
are, if you have the extra copy it would be
helpful because I presume you're going to be
asking questions about them and to look élong
with the witness would be helpful.
MR. HARP: Do you have any objéction to them
‘being introduced into evidence?
MR. BRENNAN: Coﬁld I ingquire as to when —-
I assume you referred to the first two?
| THE COURT: Sure, you can inguire,
Mr. Brennan. |
MR. HARP: The first two were part of
Mr. Morgan's affidavit; were in the summer of
2006.
- MR. BRENNAN: No objection.
THE COURT: All right. They're admitted.

MR. HARP: You like to have coples so you
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R, JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 8
can follow?
THE COURT: Yes.

(Pecple's Exhibits 1 through 7 - photographs -~ marked and

received into evidence.)

Q.  Looking at the ones that you took last Sunday
which are -- I think start off two of two, et cetera?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could you explain to the Court what they

represent?

A,  Yes, sir, I éan; The to? oﬁé of the fourVI tdok
is back a ways showing my car and -- |

MR. HARP: Your Honor, I believe the-
other —- it;s the one with the clip on that we're
on.

TQE WITNESS : The top one shows —-

THE COURT: Wait just a moment. "I want to
be sure that what's been admitted into evidence
are the photos contained with a clip handed to me
and there .are four in all, and you confirm that,
Mr. Brennan; is that your understanding?

MR. BRENNAN: T believe it appears to be
five.

THE COURT: If coqnsel could come forward,

I want these clear. I want to be clear.
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THE WITNESS: Five I took and two that the
highway took.

THE COURT: Those are four within the clip
which i assume have been admitted, and there are
two others here, so were they admitted in that
same group?

MR. HARP: Yes.

THE COURT: So these are all the pictures
that have been offered?._

MR. BRENNAN: Ther@'é five of thém,-Sngé;

THE WITNESS: Five and two.

THE COURT: Okay, so they're all admitted.
And to make this easier for our record, let me go
throagh and with regard to the picture that
you're testifying abbpt which shows your vehicle,
and I show that to you, I'll note that as
Plaintiff's 1. The next one --

' THE WITNESS: It's a little bit closer.

THE COURT: -- I'll note that as
Plaintiff'é 2.

THE WITNESS: Very good.

THE COURT: Plaintiff's 3 -- can you see,
Mr. Brennan, as I mark these?

MR. BRENNAN: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: That way we'll all know what
we're talking about. Plaintiff's 4 I'm marking
appears ﬁo be an open end of a culvert.

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is. |

THE COURT: Plaintiff's 5, I'll mark that.

I would.propose to mark the closer view of the

truck here as Piaintiff‘s & and the last photo,

Plaintiff's.7. Okay. Please continue, Mr. Harp.

Q. Okay. If you will lock at starting with
Plaintiff's 1, can you please také uélthfough the
sequence of those photos and what they represent?

A. Yes, sir, I'll be very happy to do that. The
first photo was taken at Somewhat'of a distance of the
area in question. If you look at it you can see that the
hill that comes down and where my car is parked is a bit
of a dip, and then the road continues on, goes up and
then tapers back down again and the dip is thé area of
the question on the drainage part of this.issue.

If you look you can see the road to the ieftwhand'
side of the ﬁicture is more or less completed unless
they're going to'put a top on it, and one on the right is
not quite as far along, it hasn't been smoothed out. |
This is Just a-géneral picture.

If you move on to picture 2, you can see the
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R. JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 11
culvert that's on the way on the left-hand corner, that's
part of the Lewis Family Farm drainage system, has
nothing to do with the drainage on the road, just happens
to be located at that spot.

Where that is located, if you look back at
picture 1, your Honor, you'll see there's a little bit of
a wet spot in front of it that we'll be focusing on
later, and if you look_acroSs the road, you can see
there's a little area that looks like it's kind of caved
in towards tﬁé‘foéd; a.lowér spot.' That's where ﬁhat |
culvert that's in your latter picture started.

So you‘can.see there's a white'spot in the Lewis
Road and if you Jjust come angle down towards the center
from that, that's where that culvert that's in there
later is shown. |

"THE COURT: Are you referring to this right

here? |

THE WITNESS: ‘No,. on this picture heﬁe,'Z'm

SOYTV. You see right here, this white spot right

here? This is where that culvert is shown.

THE COURT:‘ well, we have to make a record

here so we're looking at Plaintiff's 1 and

there's a white spot fo the right.

THE WITNESS: And then this little dark spot




w N

10
11
C12

13

- 14

15
IS
17
18
19

20

21

C 22

23
24
25

""R';'JACKSON <~ DX by MR. HARP [ O~
is that culvert that's shown I think in number 4.

THE COURT: Counsel, you're able to follow
along?

MR. BRENNAN: I'm not sure where he's
pointing.

THE WITNESS: Right here. This black spot
right here I got -- is where this culvert later
on, I show you in picture -~ this one here,
that's where this is located and that wet spot
over here we'll show you iater'is‘where the end
used to be of that culvert's been filled in.

Going back to 1 again, just for clarity, the
dark spot on the right is where the culvert
starts and that wet spbf —

THE COURT: And that's right near where the

.wet spot is on the top of the hill if you want to

identify the particular dark spot we're talking
about in the photograph,-COZreCt?
| THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. Then on the other
side you can see a bit of a wet spot. That's
where the culvert used to end. It's been filled
in by.the.obstruction in the road.
MR. BRENNAN: I'd object to his conclusions,

Judge, with regard to what's been filled in, et
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" R. JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 13
cetefa, et cetera.

THE COURT: I'll sustain that, although you
can describe it without making refergnce.

It's a minor elevation is what you're saying
now; 1is that correct?

THE WITNESS: I'm saying from my memory and
knowledge of living in this town my whole life
that that's where the-culvert used to end and it
no longer is visible. So the only conclusion T
can draw is -- o | o

MR. BRENNAN: I'm going to objéct to his
conclusion, yourlﬂoaor.

THE COURT: Well, he's talking to his own
experience apparently. He's a witness who's been
over this road many times and knows that at one
point there was nct filled and‘there is now, and
that's what you're saying?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. My family lived on
that road for many years. |

THE COURT: I understand. Please continue,
Mr. Harp.

THE WITNESS: Okay. If you'd go to
picture 2 --

THE COURT: Wait just a moment. We're
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R. JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 14
waiting for a guestion here from Mr. Harp.

MR. HARP: 1I'd asked him to go through the
sequence of pictures and describe what they
represent.

THE COURT: All right, go zhead.

© THE WITNESS: Picture 2 is just in the
series, focusing on that wet area in front of the
culvert drainage system top there, that was
installed by the Lewis Family Farm. Just tzying
to tie it together. |

And then if you go on to 3, it's a further
close-up of that wet area. In thét picture 1is
whére the culvert -- I should have dug and got a
shovel I guess to ex pose the culvert, but that
is where -- |

MR, BRENNAN: Judge, I'1l object to that.

THE COURT: Sustained. Limit youf testimony
to what the picture shows.

THE WITNESS: What is the wet s?ot that my
opinien‘is what fOrmed the culvert ——

MR. BRENNAN: Your Honor, I'd object to
that.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the

question.
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THE WITNESS: We can go back and have
questions again, I guess.
THE COURT: That.is the way it works.
THE WITNESS: Very good.

Q. What does picture number 4 show?

A.  Picture number 4 shows the north side of the
culvert that crosses the crossroad. It's still open and
pretty much as it's been for many years.

Q. From your experience, picture nurber 3 shows the
end of the cﬁi&ert, iﬁ other words, the ocutlet of ﬁhe-

culvert covered; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir, that is my opinion.
Q. Well, from your observation?
A.  From my observation and memory of having gone

over this rocad for 50 years, that's where the culvert
ends, and no longer anywhere on that whole area, if you

go back to 3, there's no place where the culvert

- daylights anymore. It obviously starts, it goes

somewhere and thére's no place where you can see an enhd
of it in any of the photos.
THE COURT:..Mr. Jackson, are you saying that
from some time before thére was a culvert and are
you saying that it was similar to what's shown in

Plaintiff's 4 there?
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THE WITNESS: Correct. This is the‘nqrth
end. There is a south end to that culvert that's
no longer visible in any of those photos. I can
assure you that the culvert has run from what you
see to over to that area, that's no longer
visible, any sign of the exit.

THE COURT: -All right.

THE WITNESS: This is the entrance in
picture 4 and the other ones showing in any one
of them, there is no southrend or exit ffcm.fﬁé
culvert.

- THE COURT: Just so that I'm clear, you say
the entrance to the culvert as you described, the
entrance as Plaintiff's 4 and on Plaintiff's 3,
you're saying that's where it was othérwisé
draining out of before what is shown in this
picture? |

- THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, that is.correct.

THE COURT: All right.

Prior to 1996 was the outlet, in other words, the

onhe area that is shown in picture 3, open and visible?

A,
Q.

pipe?

Yes, sir.

Had you ever observed water flowing from that
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'R.JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 17
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where did the water flow?

A. Pribr to '96 the water flowed out from that

Q. 20067

A. 2006. It flowed out that pipe and goes out
before the road was built. It went out onto the fields
that now belong to the Lewis Family Farm, If you want to
go back, I thought you're referring to '96 because in '96
there was a ditch thét_wenﬁ ftom,ﬁhat.culVért acroés the
field that was then filled in, and it all smoothed out.
So it made better, smoother farming area.

Q. Where the water flowed whenever it rained and
from the highway drainage through that pipe out into the
fields; is thét correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Prior to 20062

‘A, Yes, sir. |

Q. Before -- and I know we're past the snow season,
before we move to picture 5 can I give you cites to some
cases that support our position that —-

THE COURT: No, not at this point. We're
strictly taking testimony now. At the conclusion

you may.
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Q. picture 5, would you explain why you took that
picture and what it represents?
A. Yes, sir. The defendant has made claims that —-
MR. BRENNAN: I'm going to object to --
object té him testifying to —-
THE COURT: Well, I'll sustain the
obijection.
THE WITNESS: 1 can —-
THE COURT: Just a moment, Mr. Jackson. You
mighﬁ.inaicate jusﬁ what if ého&é.sﬁfiéﬁiy éhd |
Mr. Harp can ask a follow-up quéstion based upon
that. | |
THE WITNESS: Very good. The picture is
taken from the low spot in the road facing
northeast to some woods that are owned by Lewis
Family Farms. You can see the road that they
have installed, built. That's alsQ visible in
picture 1 from a different an@l@, and the woods
over behind that, that are northeast of the area
in guestion.
Q. Why did you take that particular picture?
‘A. I took that particular picture because the
defendaﬁt has told me that he feels that his roads are

not. a problem, that it didn't drift in during this
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R, JACKSON - DX by MR. HARP 19
blizzard, Valentine's blizzard, and that during that
Valentine's blizzard it was a Noreaster and the wind was
from the northeast, and I feel in my opinion that the
woods protected it.

MR, BRENNAN: May I object to his opinion,

your Honor? | |

THE COURT: Well, I will sustain the

objection. Please continue with why you took the
pictuxé'basically,

.THE WﬁTNESS: That's why I tock the piéture,

Jjust showing it was northeast of this area and if
they don't make any claims I guess you can ask
later anything on that.
Q. All right. Don't speculate please.
A, Shre. | |
Q. You lived there and have observed the area for
many, many years; 1s that correct?
A Yes, sir. I lived in Essex my whole life.
Q. Do you know whether or not they ever'ﬁsed SNow
fences to retard drifting snow along crossroad?

A. Yes, sir. For many, many years up until I'm

going to say late '60s, maybe early '70s -~ I'm not sure

when they quit, just became very expensive - they quit

putting them up.
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Q. Whereabouts did they put the snow fences?

A. They put the snow fences I'm going to say 30, 40
feet away from the road all the way along that area of
the crossroad as well as other places in toWn, but that's
one of the places‘they‘put them. |

MR. HARP: I have no further questions.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

MR, BRENNAN: I have no guestions, your
Honor. |

THE COURT: I have just a couple.

THE WITNESS: Okay, sure.

THE CQURT: Mr, Jackson, when were these
snow fences that you've testified to lést used?

THE WITNESS: I'm going to say -~ I can't
say exactly, but it was around 1970 give or take
a few years.

THE COURT: Okay. fddﬂth&@e&ymmﬁ
questions.

MR. BRENNAN: Judge, I'd like to ask just a
couple questions.

THE CCURT: Sure.

CROSS-EXAMINATICN BY MR, BRENNAN:

Q. - Mr. Jackson, if you look at the photographs, what

is the surféce of this road?
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A. The surface of this road is wollastonite
tailings, mainly diopside incarnate.

Q. Where‘is that obtained from?

A, It's obtained from the NYCO.plant in Willsboro,
New York. It's the tailings after they crush the ore and
remove the wolléstonite and —-

THE'COURT: He's asking how did they get
there. How did it get there?

THE WITNESS: How did 3.‘{: get theq:e?

THE COURT :. Yes,

THE WITNESS: Okay. It was lcoaded at --
they have a place at the plant where they pile
the tailings, it was loaded on town dump trucks,
spread there and then spread with a grader,
smocthed out to make the surface. DEC zecomm@nés
that for this use, so it's available, very
inexpensive, élose, s¢ we don't have to haul and
all of our dirt roads are topped with
wollastonite..

THE COURT: So the town is doing this?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, the town does this
as regular maintenance.

Q. What you refer to as the Lewls Family Farm Road

that's shown in Exhibit 6, do you hawve that in front of
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you?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. What is the —-- from your observation, what is the

composition of that road?

A. The Lewis Family Farm Road?
Q. Yes.
A.  That's crushed iimestbne, Chazy blue limestome,‘

crushed on the Lewis Family Farm on Ager Hill Road on a
pit they've established there, about a mile from this
location, half a mile, something like 'that.

Q. That's a type of gravel?

A. Yes sir, it is.

Q; - Would you look at Plaintiff's Exhibit 3, do you
have that?

A. Yes, sir, just a éecond.

Q. Also —- &o you have it?

A. Yes, sir, I do.

Q. There éppears to be a vertica} culvert of some
éort that looks to be'méde of this concrete material in
the upper left-hand corner of that photographé‘

A. Yes, sir.:

Q. That was instélled for drainage purposes not by
the town, but by'Lewis Family Farming? |

A. That is correct, sirx, that's part of the drainage
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system for that whole northern part of the road and
actually across Whallons Bay area.

Q; Your answer 1s yes?

A; Yes, sir, 1t is.

0. Plaintiff's Exhibit 3, the area that you indicate
is a wet area ——

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There isn't any wet areas shown anywhere else in
that photograph, correct?

A, That is corﬁect.

Q. and on the left side of the photograph, running
diagonallyffzom the upper right-hand corner down to the

left, bottom left-hand corner, that shows the slope of

the road that was built by Lewis Family Farm, Inc,

correct?
A. That 1s correct.
Q. And the material in the wet area that you'wve

referred to which should be the bottom, essentially the
bottom right corner of that photograph, right, Exhibit 3?

A. Basically the bottom middle, yes, sir.:

Q. That material is not the gravel or anything‘from
the Lewis Family Farm Road, is it?

A. No, sir, that's --

Q. That's the wollastonite, isn't it?
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A. if Zrcan be exact, sir, that's wollastonite
covering the stone from the Lewis Family Farm, yes, sir.

Q. What appears on the surface of that photograph on
the bottom right-hand corner, that's the wollastonite
that's depicted in that photograph, right?

A. The surface is wollastonite, yes, sir.

Q.  And then if you look at Exhibit 4, that shows the
end of the cuiveﬁt, correct? |

A. Yes,éir, that's the north end Qf the ¢ulvert.

Q. The north end of the culvert, and what color is
wollastonite?

A. It;s whitish—-tannish, very light brown. I guesé

you'd call it light tan. -

Q. What's the diameter of that culvert from your
observation? |

A. I'm going to say it's a two foot culvert, 24 inch
culvert. |

Q.  Now, the bottom right-hand corner of that

photograph appears to be the whitish-grayish material —-.

A, Yes, sir.
0. -— does it not? That's the wollastonite?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And it looks like the wollastonite that is -

flowing toward the end of the culvert in Exhibit 4; is
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that correct?

A. It loéks somewhat similar, ves, it does, sir.

Q. What's the length of that culveft ——

A That's a road i'm going to say is —-

Q. -- from your obsérvation?

A. 35, 30 feet, something like that. 35, 30 feet.

Q. You took Plaintiff's Exhibit 4; when did you take
that?

A. I took that Sunday about noontlme

Q. Did you look in the end of that <:1_1l"v‘ert'>

A. Yes, sir, I did. |

Q. And that culvert's about 35 feet long, your

estimate?

A, Yes, sgir.

Q. Did you see‘a-buildup of wollastonite inside the
culvert?

A. As you can see in the photo, there is a slight

buildup, ves, sir.

Q. Did you look through the entire end of the
culvert?

A. I looked as far as I could with a flashlight.
The amount of wollastonite tapers off and then becomes
less, and then you can't see anything at the other end.

You can't see 35 foot through a culveft, but this
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end you can see a little bit here and it became less and
less, and then there's virtually none, just a small
amount. It's a corrugated culvert and tﬁe bottom
corrugations are full, but then the corrugations
themselves are sticking up once you get in, I'm going to
say four feet, sométhing like that. I didn't measure it.

Q. Now, with regard to the wollastonite, has the |

Town of Essex ever obtained a beneficial use

determination from the Department of Environmentai‘

Conservation of the State of New York to —-

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -~ use that material?

A. Yes, éir, we have.

Q. When was that obtained?_

A. I don't know when it was first obtained. I've

oniy been in office for five years and working on four
months.ﬂ Wollastonite has been used for 50 years. 1 know
the BUD that I got a copy of was dated I beli@velteﬂ
years ago. I donft have it in front of me so I don't
wanht to say exactly.

Q. And that's such a permit from the Envifonmental
Department of Conseivation? |

A. It's not a permit, sir, it's a recommendation.

It's a recommended use.
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Q. My question is has the town ever obtained a |
beneficial use determination or a permit from DEC, not a
recommendation; have you-ever received that?
A. We have the BUD from the DEC, yes, sir.

There is no permit required. If you're familiar
with DEC recommendations, they have the BUD list, which
is Beneficial Use Determination. It's been tested, it's
beneficial and then they have another list of prohibited.
If it's not on the.pxohibited,‘you do not need a permit
to use it. -

Q. = When you were there it was on Apri1,3rd. Is that
the date you were there to take these photos?

A. Today —- let me look at the calendar. It was oﬁ
Sunday which would have been April 1st.

Q. When was it?

A, According to that calendar 2007, Suﬁday was April
lst —— no, excuse me, March 3lst. Mérch 3lét was the

date I was there.

Q. When was the last time you were there at that
location before that? : J
A. I go down that road at least every week if not

more frequent.
Q.  When you were there on March 3ist was there any

water on the surface of crossroad?
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A. No, sir. All the snow was méltgd. There was no
water anywhere in that area.

Q. = Was there any flooding of crossroad in that area?

A. Not on that date, no, sir.

Q. At any time this spring?

A. There was minor -~- I wouldn't call it fiooding.
There was surface water standing in that area by the
drainage. I wouldn't call it flooding because it wasn't
all the way across the road, but it was landing on the
side of it, yes, sir.

Q.  Is that the only time you saw that this winter?

A, No, there was some earlier, I believe it was in

“January. We had a lot of rain and the same situation

_existed, it was not a flood, but the end of the culvert

shown in picture 4 was covered with water, and it was up
just a little bit onto the road.

Q. And the road was stii}rpassible, correct?

A. Yes, sir, 1t was.

Q. And theﬁe was no time during the winter of 2006,
2007 that crossroad was in any fashion closed for travel,
was 1it?

A. No, sir, it was not.

Q. And you had a major snowstorm I presume on

Valentine's Day, February 147
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A. Yes, sir, we had a Noreaster on that date.
Q.  What was the total accumulation of snowfall from

that storm in Essex?

A. In the Essex area I'm going to say it was
probably varied, but some areas like that were protected,
had very little like the area in qdestion, I don't think
we got a foot there. Other areas it drifted up it was
well over 30 inches. Overall, I’m.géing to say we had a
little better than two foot of snow in Essex. o

Q.  The town employees to the highway department were

able to plow crossroad?

A, Yes, sir, they were.

Q. Now, you say the crossroad in that area was
protectéd? | |

A, Yes, sir, in my opinion it was protected.

Q. There are fields on the north and south sides of

that road of Eh@ Lewis Family Farm,-Inc, correct?

A. Yes, sir, you are correct.

Q. | The road in that area, the farm réad of LeWié
Family Farm, Inc, acéording tolthe photograph, is some
elevation above the surface for travel on crossroad,
correct? |

A, Yes, sir. If you ask my estlmate I'd say about

six, maybe a llttie more than six foot.
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Q, What 1s the length of that area where a crossroad
is above the elevation —- or excuse me, where the Lewis
Family Farm Road in that area is ébove the elevation of
crossroad?
A. Well, if you look back at picture number 1, if I
may refer back to that, you can see that actually it's

from the top of the hill all the way down through it

varies, and most of it is not as high over, is not six

foot, but the whole length of it, it's a little above our
road from anywhere from one foot to six foot where that
drain culvert is.

Q. Would you look at what I have marked as Plaintiff

Exhibit 6?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I want to make certain we have the same
phofograph.

A. Tup.

0. Is that the photograph that you have marked as

‘Plaintiff's Exhibit --

A, Yes, sir.
Q.  What direction is the camera facing?
A, Almost due west. This road in this area is

almost west at the top of the hill heading eaét down the
hill.
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Q. In that photograph, Plaintiff's FExhibit 6, the
Lewis Family Farm Road appears to the left of crossroad,
correct?

A. Yeé,'sir. At that time, they'd only built that
one road. |

Q. And the truck that is depicted in that photograph
is on the surface of crossroad facing in what direction?

A It's facing east.

Q. And from the top of the hill at the top of the
photograph, it appears in that photograph that the level
of the farm road-and the levél of crossioad as one goes
down the hill proceeding in that direction appears to be
very little difference in elevation, doesn't it?

A, Yes, sif, I'd guess a foot; foot and a half.

Q. I'm talking about how about in the area in the
central left portion of that photograph, from your
observation what's the difference in elevation betwéen
the farm road and crossroad?

A, Looking at the person standing there, I'm going

to say it's approximately six foot.

0. How about from your observation?
A. TI'm going to say about six foot, my guesstimate.
0. As one proceeds in a what, easterly direction

toward the camera?
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A Yes, sir.

Q. For what length would the fatm road be of
approximately thét elevation above crossroad?

A. I'm going to say less than a hundred foot.

Q. And then it goes back down where there's just a
slight difference in elevation?

A. Yes, sir. I'm going to say that not in this
photo or any of these photos, a little bit more visible
in number 7, but it gets back down at the top of that.
next —— a little bit of a rise, and from then on it's

approximately a foot, foot and a half above the

crossroad.
Q. From the area of travel on Exhibit 67
A. fes, sir.
Q. On the edge of croésroad Lo the farm road going

in that direction, that would be going south right from
the edge of the road toward the Family Farm Road?

A. From the picture of the truck towards the family

road, vyes.
Q. Yes?
A.. That's on the south side of the road.
Q. Thére are ndlshoulders on that ﬁdad, correct?
A. Used to be, but there are not now.
Q. From the edge of the area éf travel on crossroad
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down to the base of the farm road, it appears to slope

downward, does it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And 1f you look at —-

A, Called the toli of the road I believe.

0. If you look at Exhibit 6 —-

A. Yes, siﬁ.

Q. ~= on what would be the north side of crossroad,

what is depicted there as one goes &p the hill appears to
be the natural condition of the level of the land, is it
not? |

A. Wéll, I don't know if it's natural, but it's what
it's been for several years, vyes.

Q. And the road was put there by the Town of Essex,
correct? |

A, Yes, sir.

Q0. And in that photograph, Exhibit 6, on the north

. side in the top portion of that photograph where the

elevation of the land or the trees along the edge of
crossroad are depicted aﬁpears to be at a level above the
elevation of the surface of crossroad, does it not?

A. Yes, sir, the road is below the surrounding land
in that area.

Q. And that would appear to be from that phqtdgraph
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two to three to four feet above the lével of the road?

A. No, sir, I don't believe it's that much. Might
be two foot. I'm going to say foot and a half, two foot.
I don't believe.it;s any more than two foét.

Q. Plowing activity took place in that area during
the winter, correct?

A. Yes, sir, it did.

Q. And as one proceeds to the area not d@picied in
this photograph, the camera would be facing in the-

opposite direction in Exhibit 7; is that correct?

A, That's correct, sir. That's bésically fécing the
other way.
Q. So you're talking about an area, this increased

elevation of the farm road that's about a hundred feet in
length?

A. . Good guess.

Q. And then as one proceeds in that direction toward
the top of the photograph, the farm road is only slightly
above the elevation of crossroad, correct?

A. That is correct, éir.

Q. And the elevation in that area of the farm road

really has not increased above the level of the condition

‘that existed prior to the construction of the farm road,

correct?
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A. Not quite true, it's a little higher. If you
look at the roéd, it's harder to see, I know, but it's
probably about let's say approximétely a foot higher than
the field was before the road waé put there. It was
where the —— from where the top of the hill, if you look
at 7 from that area on, it was basically flat across that
whole area and now the road is I'm going to say about a
foot and a half above. | |

Q. Look at Plaintiff Exhibit 3, will you?

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. You described that area which appears to be
darker in color when you were there on March 3lst as a
wet area, correct? |

A. ' Yes, six, that's the term I used.

Q. And that's an area that is lower between the
Family Farm Road and the edge of croséroad on the south
sid@,'correct?

A. Yes, sir, that's the ditch where the two fows
(CHECK (TOLLS, UP} of the roads come together. The tow
of the town road and the tow of the Lewis Family Farm
Road come fogeth@z, and that acts as a ditch in that
area.

Q. The ditch area, what would be thE'deptﬁ of the

ditch in relation to the elevation of the farm -- of the
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crossroad?
A, I'm going to say it's approximately foot, foot
and a half.
Q. What was the length of the wet area from east to
west that you cbserved there that day? |
A. It's easier to see in cone of the other photos.
If I may refer back to number 2, you can see it there a
little clearer. I'm going to say it's about five foot
area, maybe six foot area, something -like that.
Mﬁ; BRENNANf I have nothing further, Judge.
THE COURT: Mr. Harp, before I allow you to
ask a few questions which I know you must, I have
a couple of questions here again for Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Jackson, with regard to Plaintiff's
Exhibit 3, you've already testified that that is
the other end of a culvert, and in which the
water has made that area wet; is that correct?‘
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. It's where the
culvert used to daylight or come out into the
ditch and it's been filled up, no longer
daylighﬁs.' Yes, sir.
THE COURT: What concerns do you have as
supervisor of the town relative to that

condition?
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THE WITNESS: Thank you for asking fhat
question. . My concern is this was a very unusual

winter. Normally we have a lot more snow than
this. We're very fortunate that it melted
Qradually. ITf we'd have had a big rain and that

would've gone quickly, the water would not have

been able to go through that culvert, in my

opinion, and flow through.

MR. BRENNAN: Judge, I'm going to -- |

THE WITNESS: And back up and flood the
road.

THE COURT: Wait a minute. There haé been
an objeétion. I'm going to note that I'm going
to allow the witness to answer this in terms of
concerns, but, sir, you'zé th'an expert, s0 to a
certain extent Mr. Brennan ié correct indicating
that really we can't have testimony to be used in
a way wh@;e a decision will bé made. But I'm
going to allow you to express yourself based upon
concerns on behalf of the town.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Whether that is realistic or not
we're going to have to take up with other

witnesses. So please continue.
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THE WITNESS: Okay. Well, that's my
concern. There's two concerns, this whole thing,
the flooding issue.

THE COURT: When you say flooding, you're
talking about where 1f there's a heavy amount of
water through this culvert it's likely thflood
over the rbad, 15 that what you mean?

THE WITNESS: That's exactly what I'm
saying, sir. That whole area, if you go back to
picture 1 where my car is,‘iﬁ‘s.not very clear in
here. Might be clearer if you look at Picture
number 7, but theré's a dip in the road there,
and that's where the culvert's located at that
lowest basic location.

If you look at Picture number 7 where the
People are standing, that's where the culvert
goes across the road, and if that can't handle

the flow, then the water will flood over that and

" that whole area will become unsafe for traffic.

THE COURT: And you can concede in essence
of this past vear that didn't occur, but you have
also indicated that you believed it was a lighter
year than what might otherwise have cleérly been

expected?
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THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, that's one concern.
The cother concern is the wollastonite and leaves

and organic matter will make that stone, which

now flows water pretty good, not flow water as

good in the future, and then as a result of that,
it will be even more likely to happen as time
goes on than it was this year.

THE COURT: Now, do you have any other

concerns with regard to this road in terms of

your position as supervisor of the town?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, I do, and it's based
on my experience of my people in my highway
department. When you plow the roads --

MR. BRENNAN: Your Honor, I'm going to
obﬁect to him testifying to what these concerns
of people on the Highway Department -—-

THE COURT: I'm,going”to.overrule the
objection because I'm a§suming as town supervisor
tbey are directly under your charge; is that |
correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: When you plow a road you can

only throw the snow up so high, and with a foot
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and a half along the rest of it, two foot, that's
not a problem. When you plow the roads you can
throw the snow up, but when you start getting six
foot and then you throw snow on top of that, it
becomes véry difficult to plow the snow out, and
also it's more likely with this higher area, this

is a problem area. We've had problems in the

- past.

THE COURT: Is that because ydu're saying
the Family Farm Road presents a barrier to the
SNow in a heavy year, is that what you're saying?

THE WITNESS: Almost. Not quite, sir. When
SNOW Jo@s across an area, the wind is‘up‘on the
top and there isn't wind down in the bowl area.
The snow being heavier in there ténds to settle
out more and I'm afraid that this area, if we'd
have had a south wind during the blizzard, this
whole area probably would've beenlseven, eight,
ten foot'df snow. I have no idea, way of
kﬁowing.

Certain that whole basin would have been
full and the plows could not have plowed it out.
The only way we could have cleared out the road

is a front-end loader. We've had to do that in
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the past. Never that amount of snow, it's about
three, four feet of snow, but with this basin
created there with the Family Farm Road on the
both sides being a six foot basin, it will fill
up with that plus Qhatever the height of the
natural snow, and be very difficult for the
Highway Department to clean the snow out of this
area.

The rest of the road's not a prcblem. The

one foot area, the foot and a half, two foot area

that's zaised,'we‘can plow that out of there;
That's not that bad, but when you getlthat‘six
foot dip, if that drifts in with snow from the
south wind, if you have that duriﬁgtheAsnowstotm
the only way we can clear it out is with
front—end'}oaders'and, of course, the road would
be closed and impassable for any traffic at that
Time.

I want to add there is school bus that goes
over that every day. It would have to be
diverted and other use during that time periocd.

THE COURT: All right, thank.you. Those are
your concerns; is that cbrrect?‘

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
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THE . COURT: All right.

THE WITNESS: If the road was down, if they
lowered that road down the same as the risk of a
foot and a half and restored the rest of it, I
have no problem with the Family Farm Road.

THE COURT: All riéht, thank you. Mr. Harp?

MR. HARP: I'd like this tc be marked. I

guess we're up to Plaintiff's 8 now.

THE COURT: Yes.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 - marked for identification.)

REDIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. HARP:

Q.
ﬁxhibit
Al

Q.

Mr. Jackson, would you please look at Piaintiff's
8, and do you recognize that?
Yes, sir, I do.
I'& like to offer it in evidence.
THE COURT: Well, what is it, Mr. Jackson?
THE WITNESS: Sir, this -~ if you go on the
Department of Environ&ental Conservation website
aﬁd you go look for the recommended uses,  recycle
uses that Department of Environmental
Conservation recommends item, if you come down
from the top, item 2 and 3 is NYCO minerals and
then you go across from the Willsboro plant, the'

tailings wollastonite they récommend for using on
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THE COURT: All right.

THE WITNESS: If the road was down, if th@yi
lowered that road down the same as the.risk of a
foot and a half and restored the rest of it, I
have no problem with the Family Farm Road.

THE COURT: All right, thank you. Mr. Harp?

MR. HARP: 1I'd like this to be marked. I
guess we're up to Plaintiff's 8 now.

THE COURT: Yes.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 - marked for identification.)

REDIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. HARP:

Q.
Exhibit
.

Q.

Mr. Jackson, would‘you please look at Plaintiff's
8, and do you recognize that?
Yes, sii, I do.
I'd like te offer it in evidence.

' THE COURT: Well, what is it, Mr. Jackson?

THE WITNESS:  Sir, this -- if you go on the

Department of Environmental Conservation website
and you go look for the recommended uses, recycle
uses that Department of Environmental
Conservation recommends item, if you come down
from the top, item‘2 and 3 is NYCO minerals and
then you go across from the Willsboro plant, the

tailings wollastonite they recommend for using on
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town roads and parking lots as a beneficial use
for this waste product, and that's what BUD
stands for, Beneficial Use Determination.

THE COURT: Mr. Brennan?

MR, BRENNAN: Judge, I would object to this.
Apparently there are arrows drawn on it_énd this
is being offered. From what I can see here is
this has nothing to do with thelTown of Essex as
the request to -- |

THE COURT: I'mlgoing sustaiﬁ.it. If you
want to lay a different foundation, someone from
the appropriate entity to come in and indicate
what that is.

MR. HARP: Your Honor, he.asked the question
of Wh@ther or not wollastonite.had ever been
recomuended or they had clearance with relevant
use to it, and this document showsrthat was on
the approved list for use.

THE COURT: = Well, he testifjed already that
that's what his understanding was and that's
already in our record.

Now, with respect to I think it's photo number

5 -- 4, excuse me, you were asked relative to the whitish

product along the entrance to the culvert?
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. Yes, sir.
Q. And you indicated it was wollastonite?
A. The tailings, yes, sir. Wollastonite tailings.
0. Did the town place those there?
A. No. Some of it -- the wollastonite tailiﬁgs_are

differeni textures, different sized particles, and the
finer particles sometimes will wash when the water drives
by and carry it, something like mud.
Q. So it was washed onto the slope of the farm road;
is that corréét?l. B | |
A. Yes, sir.
MR. HARP: No further questions.
THE COURT: Thank you. Anything further,
Mr. Brennan?
MR. BRENNAN: I just have a couple
questions. |

RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. BRENNAN:

Q. What was the total snowfall in thelTown of Essex
this past winter?

A, Well, I would say -- have to guess..
I'm not asking‘you Lo guess. |
What's that?

I'm not asking you to guess.

> 0 PO

I cannot answer your question. I don't have that
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knowledge. | |

Q. Does the town Highway Department keep statistics
every year as to snowfall?

AL Not to my knowledge. If they do, I'm not aware,
but they possibly could. I can't answer that cquestion.
T don't have that knowledge.

Q. Is there any record of the Town of Essex to show
what the annual snowfall has been in the Town of Essex
during the last ten years of winters?

A. I'm sure we could obtain thét,.but I don't bavé
that record. I mean, if you do oﬁ the weather site you
can find that information out, if you choose to go back

and find out each year what the snowfall is in the area.

Q. But you have no idea what it is?
A. No, sir,. just theory, and those are not exact by
any means.

MR. BRENNAN: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. HARP: .No.

THE COURT: You may step down. Thank you
very much. I take it, Mr. Harp, yoﬁ have no
further witnesses so at this time, we'll take any
witnesses to be heard by the Lewls Family Farm.

MR. COOK: Your Honor, we would call
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Mr. Todd Deyo.

TODD DE YO

called herein as a witness, being duly sworn,

- testified as follows:

DIRECT-EXAMINATICON BY MR. COOK:

Q.
record.
Al
Q.
A,

Q.

Mr. Deyo, would you state your name for the

Todd E. Deyo.
What is your current employment?
I'm a self-employed contractor.

Can you describe for the Court what your

contracting business consists of?

A.
highway
Q.

©eoroo

years.

Q.

Laﬁd‘clearing, road building, street work,

work.

How long have you been engaged in this business?
Approximately twenty years.

How long havé you done work in the North Country?
Approximately twenty years.

How much of your work consists of building roads?

Indirectly on and off, 20 years, 21 years, 19

And in the course of your work as a building

contractor, have you designed and installed drainage
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systems in roads?

A, Yes, we have.

Q. Are you familiar with the Lewis Family Farm?

A, Yes, T am.

Q. And how are you familiar with that company?

A.  We have done work for the Lewis Farms for eight

plus or minus years.

Q. AﬂawmfmﬂﬁarwﬁhtMaﬂmm§Umtamtme
subject of this litigation in particular?

A. The Crossroad in ?articnlaf, ves, irém.

Q. How are you familiar with the crossroad?

A. We.designed and built the flanking roads adjacent
to the crossroéd. |

Q. What is thé buéiness of Lewis Family Farm?

A. They are an organic producer of materials,
grains, hays, s&ybean, that type of'commodity for what
they do.

Q. And are you familiar with the term organic

" certification?

A. A little bit, vyes.

Q. As an organic farmer, are they subject to
different regulations for that certification?

A, They are extremely scrutinized for no pesticides,

herbicides, certain chemicals they can't use and getting
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the soil out of PH and out of'their sink for what they
need for crop rotation is critical.

Q. Are you familiar with the Town of Essex's use of
wollastonite mine tailings?

A. Yes, T am.

Q. Why did the Lewis Family Farm contact you and
request that you buiid roads adjacent to crossroads?

A. There was a couple different reasons. First is
wanted to improve the drainage for the farm. Less water
going to the town ditchéstoﬁ'éertaih'fiélds that laid
toward Whalldns Bay Road or crossroad, Clark Road in
different areas. And secondly, the erosion problem with

the wollastonite getting into the lower lying areas of

+ this particular area, which is on the crossroad causing

major problems.

Q.  And have you personally observed areas on the
Lewis Family Farm where wollastonite had run off into
farm fields? |

A, Yes, sir.

Q. What did you observe in those areas?

A. Well, there was nothing that grew:aﬁd on the
outskirts of what‘didn‘t grow was very lightly populated
with any types of plant growth that they would be trying

to grow.
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Q. In your opinion as a building contractor, is
wollastonite an optimal product to use in road
construction?’

A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. There's no aggregate to it. There's no
consistency to it. There's no basis of it ?assing water.
When water hits it on a slope grade, it erodes very
easily, very quickly. Obviously watérlruns downhill and
that's wheretﬁreequéfters.of this problem:is Wiﬁﬁ #h@
wollastonite that it doesn't stay in place.

MR. COOK: Your Honor, if I approach, I have
several‘photographs and I apologize, 1 thought L
had enough copied for everyone. So if the Court
can do us some indulgence and work with the
witness.

THE COURT: Sure.

(Defendant's Exhibits A through H -~ markéd for
identification.)

Q. Mr. Deyo, if you can look at the first
photograph; is this the one that you're looking at,
Exhibit A? " |

A | Yes, sir.

Q. Could you describe what that photograph depicts?
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A. Well, that indicates that there is erosion beside
the road prior to the ditch. The water ilsn't getting to
the diftch, it's staying in the road, washing the road
out, and you can clearly see that there's been another
duﬁp of wollastonite graded on this road freshly with a
grader and not rolled. So the first rain it gets, what
Jjust got put on is going to be washed off again.

0. lSo you know when the town last applied
wollastonite to the‘cfossroad?

A. I can't Sﬁécifically saylto.the éaté bécéuéé I.
haven't been here every day in the last tﬁree or four
weeks. Perhaps -~ no, I don't even want to say. No, no,
I don't even want to say when it was because last time I
was there I know it was just freshly done.

Q. So the last time you were there —-

A. T was there on Sunday and it had been done not
long before Sunday of this past week.

Q. So as far as you're aware, there was an
application within the last wé@k or s07

Al That is correct. |

Q. Okay.. Could you turn to Exhibit B, just this
photo? |

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Would you describe what that shows?
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A. Well, that's a low lying area on the crossroad.
You can see by the photos that when the plow goes by in
ﬁhe winter that he kicks part of the road off, which is
going to be normal, a gravel type application, but this
is a little bit worse because there's no gravel. And
they kick it off the side of the road. Hence, they're
filling their ditch‘up and you know they're just creating
a problem.
Now, also on the top of this photo right just.
east of that oténge cone thaﬁ'é Ehere -
Q. East would be to the right?
A.  Just straight ahead looking down tdward the tree
line. There's a crown in the rocad ﬁight there. And
there's a clear evidence of regrading'that.?articular

area with wollastonite in this photo and I don't know

when this photo was taken.

!

Q. Are you able to tell from this photo
approximately where the town culvert was located?

A. Well, I can because I know where it is. If

you're looking at the manhole on the right-hand side

which you can just see a little bit of the concrete, if

you slid over on the side of the road and go up

approximately eight to ten feet, that's where the culvert

is going to cross the road.
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Q. Did the construction of the Lewis Family Farms
that you were involved in in any way impact the drainage
of that culvert?

A, No, it was tWO“thirdS full when we got to it and
it's still two—thirds full.

Q. Is it full from any of the product used in the
road construction?

A. No, there's no rock in there. It's only
wollastonite.

Q. Turn to Exhibit C. Can you describe what this
photo depicts? | |

A. Well, this is a new .application of wollastonite.
This appears to be an extenuation of Exhibit 2 on top of
the crown that I was talking about earlier, and you can
clearly see that the grader made multiple.passes,
basically looks like the ditch has been filled on top of .
the hill, so that any water that goes either east or west
will use the road as a ditch, as it's lower than the
Stone Road that we constructed.

Q. And that's because the grading on the xight side
of the photograph,. the ridges that are left in the
grading prevent the drainage off of the road?

A. Yeah, that particular piece of the road isn't

ground, that piece of the road is flat.
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Q. And in your opinion as a road contractor, 1is that

proper building maintenance procedure?

A, Not of the course I've ever seen, but that's my

opinion.

0. Exhibit E, this appears to be a close-up
photograph of the road surface; is that what it appéars
to be?

A. That's what 1t appears.

Q. Could you describe the consistency of the

A, Well, it goes from eithér chunky that's on the
left side of the photo - perhaps there's frost in it, I
don't know that - to, you know, the res£ of the road
is -- just looks like it's graded flat.

Is it a fine consistency?
It's a very fine consisﬁency.

Similar to sand?

p oo p O

same as sand.

. How so?

Very similar to sand and it behaves very much the

A, You put water to it and it erodes, it moves, it

doesn't stay stable.

Q. When you say it doesn't stay stable, what do you

mean?
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A. Well, if you have a slope and you add water fto it
it's going to destroy the road. You're going to have a
washoﬁt. You're going to have erosio&? and this material
is going Lo be deposited in a low lying area, going to a
stream, going to a wetlands, .going to sqmepiace other
than where it was intended to stay.

Q. .Could you turn to ExhibitID. What does that
photograph depict?

A. That looks like it was just graded, I see gradér
tracks. Andnégaih, it was'gréded very pecorly, not rolléd
and again, the first rain, this material is moving.

Q. Would you turn to Exhibit F. Could you describe
where there appears to be a light strip running
diagonally through the center of the photograph, is that
the ditch.on the side of crossroad? |

A. That would appear to me as if the grader cleaned

the edge of the road and swept a tailings on the upwards

side of the ditch if there was or perhaps right in the
base of the ditch, and therefore, the ditch will fail.

Q. So 1t appears that the ditch has been filled by
the town in their use of the‘wollaStbnite?

A, That's what this_photo indicates.

Q. Turn teo G please, Exhibit é, can you describe -

what that depicts?
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A. There's a classic example of what wollastonite
does. You can see there's a culvert. It's washed by the
culvert. If you're looking up, the photo coming back
towards, you're going to see bottom of the wollastonite
in the low lying area. Now, I don't know for éure, but
perhaps that culvert also got a deposit of wollastonite
in it and that will fail.

MR, COOK: Your Honor, I would move for
admission of the evidence A through G. I will
not ﬁéé'H. Youf Hoﬁor, I mbve fbr admissiénlof
‘Exhibits A throﬁgh H.

THE COURT: Mr. Harp?

MR. HARP: No objection.

THE COURT: No objection, they have beeﬁ
admitted. |

(Defendant's Exhibits A through H - received in
evidence.)

Q. Mr. Deyo, I'd like to discuss with you the

~ construction of the farm roads that run parallel to the

crossroads. When did you build those?

A, Those were done, started perhaps in July of '06
and finished sometime late November, early December of
'06.

Q. And what material are they constructed from?

T. DEYO - DX — MR. COOK " gg =
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A. It's a limestone rock, I den't have the exact
ném@ of that particular limestone.

Q. And in your experience as a road comtractor, do
the standards of construction to these farm roads meet
professional standards?

AL They're highly above what the state would require
to do state projects.

Q. Why are they built to higher standards?

A, Recause we want something that lasts and doesn't
fall apart.
Q. When you constructed those roads, were you aware

of the location of the town's highway easem@hts?
A. We were.
MR.-HARP: Cbjection. How does he know
about the highway easement?
THE COURT: Well, he's'going to tell us. I
will overrule the obijection.
Q: How were you aware of the —-

A We had recently put in a NYSEG right-of-way.

~Sandy had -- of the Lewis Farm had made arrangements with

NYSEG to get their overhead lines out of farm fields and

bury into a conduit and with a spare conduit along the

- right—of-way, around the town's right-of-way that flanked

most of these roads that we're in discussion about.
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NYSEG also required that they retain an easement
ten feet past. In other words, the town's easement was
zero to 25 feet and NYSEG's easement was 25 to 35 feet.
Q.. Were the farm roads built at all in any portion
within the town easement?

MR. HARP: Objection again.

MR. BRENNAN: He's just testified, your
Honor, that he's aware of what the town's
easement was and what NYSEG's easement was.

THE COURT; Sii;.bbvibusly'yoﬁ;fe‘élrbad
contractor agd,‘of course, in performing that-
kind of work you have to be aware of what
easenments exist‘in favor of town roads, correct?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

THE COURT: What is the source of your
information with regard to what you're testifying
about here?

THE WITNESS:' It was set 25 feet from center
line to highway.

MR. HARP: Again, I object to it, there's no
basis for him te know what a user road is. It
isn't limited to 25 feet.

THE COURT: Well, T believe'we're'making

reference here to pro visions of the Town Law,
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right, which is what is being referred to here,
correct?

MR. HARP: WNo. A user road is whatever is
used in connectioﬁ with maintenance or —

MR, COOK: That gets into the argument, your
Honor. I think that does get into the argument.
MR. HARP: He's testifying to what the

easement is, your Honox.

THE COURT: Well, I'll note that that's in
disputé,‘but the construétion oflthé zoadWéYS,
it's understood that there'é a certain specific
delineation for that.

T realize what's in diépute here is the use
of certain words as to appurteﬁances or what may
constitute an additional righf by the town, but
certainly there's a minimal amount that we can
agree upon, what is in dispute,'wh@th@r or not
thefe's a larger extension of the easement. But
we're talking about the expressed provisions of
the town law; is that correct?

MR. COOK: That's correct, your Honor.

MR. HARP: And that basically indicates 25
feet, is that what we're talking about?

MR. COOK: That's correct.
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MR. HARP: Your Honor, I object, thét the
' statute section of 180 Highway‘Law does not

specify the width of a highway. |

MR. COOK: Your Honor, again, that gets into
ﬁhe argument that if there were the case there
would be no ability to —- |

THE COURT: Well, I'm going to overrule the
lssue b@céuse it's an issue ‘in contention, but
certainly there's a standard here, and that's
understood. Whether it's be?dnd‘that bébaﬁé@ of
the circumstances, that's a matterlwe're go;ng to
have to decide.

Q. Mr. Deyo, is there a shoulder oﬁ the sides of the

town road?

A. Many roads do not have a shoulder on it.
Q. Is there a shoulder on crossroad? Are you aware
of ~— let me rephrase that.

- How wide generally, and I know it may vary from
place to place given the location of the roéd. ‘Generally
how wide is just the road surface of crossroad?

A, It changes from the start of the road to the base
of the hill to a quarter mile down.
Q.  Approximately what would that width be?

A, 21, 22 feet.
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Q. How far is the setback from the town road to the
farm.ioad?
A. Approximately 34, 35‘feet.
Q. Are you aware of what the elevations are of the

farm road?

A. In reference to?
Q. The town road?
A, We are above that.

Q. Why was that higher elevation selected for that
construction? | - - N

A. The higher elevation was S@leqted because if we
didn't raise the farm road, they added more wollastonite
in the town road, then what would happen is their town
road would still spill over our stone road and still end
up by going into the field.

Q.. You testified that the farm roads are built with»
crushed rock, correct?

A.  Crushed rock.

Q; What are the benefit of using crushed rock for
road construction? |

A. | It passes water rather quickly, it acts like a
mini detention basin, retention basin. So it will absorb
water and release watér at a slower rate causing léss

volatility in storm runoffs certain times of the year,
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fifty year events, hundred year events.
Q. And this spring'have there been some heavy rains
in that aréa that you've observed?
A. I physically haven't been there} but I know we
had a lot of heavy rain home. That's 30 miles away.
MR. HARP: 1I'1ll object.

THE COURT: Sustain the objection.

Q. Are you aware of any flooding along crossroad?
A. T am not aware of any flooding.
Q. Is that because the construction of the farm

roads are designed to convey water away?

A. It is. |

Q. Does the increased elevation at the farm roads
act as a natural snow barri@r? |

A, It will keep snow off from crossroad.

Q. You're aware of a major snowfall on Valentine's
Day of this.winter?

A. 30 something inches we were working.

Q. Are you aware of whether crossroad was ever
closed as a result of that snowfall?

A. You know, I took note of that especially and
there was no closure on that road. |

Q. I'd like to go to the issue of the ﬁown's culvert

of the road. When you constructed the farm roads, .did
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you observe any blockage or drainage or —— excuse me, any
blockage in the culvert?

A. It was half to two-thirds full of appears to be

wollastonite.
Q. Was it blocked more on one end or the other?
A, Didn't really seem to notice any difference from

one end to the otherf
MR. COOK: I have no further questions, your
Honor. |
THE‘COURT: Thank you. Mﬁ. Harp?

CROSS-EXAMINATTON BY MR. HARD:

Q. I don't know what-pheto it is, but I think photo
4, our photo. From your knowledge of the area is that
pigture.of the upside or upstream side of the culvert?
MR. COOK: Objection, your Honor. 1I'm not
sure what upstream would bé.
Q. The higher end of the culvert?
- THE COURT: Rephrase.
MR. COCK: Why don't we use designation of
north, souﬁb, éast, west.
MR. HARP: I don't know which side the road
is on.
THE COURT: Well, perhaps your witness can

tell vyou.
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Q. Ckay. It's at the entrance to the culvert?
A. I would think it is. I would also think it's on
the north side of the road, but I'm not sure what angle
fhis photo was taken at. It's not marked.

Q. Does that show two-thirds, three quarters filled

Sup -

A, Actually, what happened in this particular photo,
and I'm kind of glad you brought this out because when we
did our road construction on the backside of this we
shoveled out what wé.coﬁld of ﬁhié baiﬁicuiéflpﬁéto.

Q. You_shoveled‘it out of a photo that was taken
months later, right?

A. We shoveled this photo out when we built the road
which would have been prior to this photo, Which would
also lead me to believe that with the amount of sediment
that you have back in the bottom, the same occurrence 1is
happening.

Q. Now, from your observations of the‘area, did

water flow from the culvert onto the field prior to the

road -~ the farm road being constructed?
A, I don't understand your question.
Q. Did water flow from the drainage pipe under the

crossroad onto the fields prior to your construction of

the farm roads?
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A. There was —— the iny thihg that culvert was
intended to do -—
Q. I'm not asking what it was intended teo do. I'm
asking you whether or not water flowed onto the field.
You saild you were there freguently, et cetera, et cetera

and you built a road to block the flowage, didn't you?

A. We didn't block the flow.

Q. Did water flow from the pipe Qut onto fhe'fieids?
A. Yes, it did.

Q. And YQQ built the farm road in an area that water

flowed, i1s that not correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. What substance in wollastonite is harmful-or has
properties that increase the PH of a soil?

MR. COOK: Cbjection, your Honor. Mr. Deyo
is not an expert in soils.

THE COURT: Mr. Harp, Ifm‘going to sustain
the objection. I don't think you can derive that
information from this witness.

Q. = Are you aware that in the 1960's the very same
area, the samé farm that is now Lewis Family Farm was
used to test wollastonite as a lime substance substitute
for farm®?

MR. CCOK: Cbjection, -your Honor.
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THE COURT: The question was, Mr. Harp,
whether he was aware whether there was any prior
attempt to use a substitute for wollastonite?

MR. HARP: No, to use wollastonite as a
substitute lime on' the very farm that consisted
of Lewis Family Farm.

THE COURT: What's your objection?

 MR. COOK: He's asking him to testify about
something that happened in the '60s, I believe.
Mr. DéYd may have been two years old in the '60s
or older. |

THE COURT: Z'm.going to overrule the
objection. Are you aware of it?

THE WITNESS: No.

The photographs A through F I think it is, did

you take those photographs?

Q.

S A S B

I did not.

So you don't know -- do fou know who took themé
I do not.

Do you know when they were taken?

I do not.

So you don't know what conditions prevailed when

they were taken, whether the farm roads were in place or

not in place; is that correct?
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A. No, ask the question again please.
Q. When you built the farm roads in relationship to

these photos you don't know whether the photos wexe taken
before or after or when?

A, Well, actually, I do because one of those photos
show my John‘Deere dozer sitting on the side of the road
and that dozer's only been there about four and a half,
five weeks. So those roads were built prior to these
photos.

Q. You héd indicated that woliastonite was ﬁsed on
crossroad recently. Did you.obéerve it being used on the
crossroad recently?

A. I didn't see it being put down. I did cbserve
through the photos and on Sunday that there waé fresh
wbllastonite graded on that particular piece of the road.

THE COURT: But not placed on there; is that
correct? | |

THE WITNESS: _I didn't see the dump truck
durp it‘out; that is correct.

Q.. So if T call the highway superintendent, who
placed wollastonite on crossroad‘th@ last time, he did,
and it was many months ago, your observation wouldﬁ't be
proper, would it?

MR, COOK: Objéction, your Honor.
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THE COURT: You have a good faith basis for
knowing when the supervisor did that or are you
just speculating, Mr. Harp?
MR. HARP: I do know when he last placed —-
THE COURT: Th@ﬁ I'1]l overrule the objection
if you have a good faith basis for asking. Would
your answer change with that information that
he's telling you, sir?
THE WITNESS: It was tegraded within the
last week to.teﬁ~days.l. | |
Q. I asked placement.
A. Yeah, and I told you that I didn't see it come

out of the dump truck.

Q. Okay.
A, But you also asked if it was regraded, and it was
regraded.

0. I did not ask if it was regraded, I asked the
placement. The ditches, as you observed them, had
wollastonite in them from your photos, from these photos
A through F, right? |

A. = Yes.

Q. What happens when wollastonite builds up and
against the farm road, will it act as a barrier?

A. Over time, it is possible, but if there were
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water bars put in on the crossroad, erosion was stopped,
water preventions pﬁt in placé. You didn't have an
erosion problem, this problem would never exist, but
being thét you have an erosion problem, this may be an
iésue.

G. Have you ever performed work for the state under

the state specs?

A. We have.

Q.  Under what entity? Under what entity?

A. What dolyou mean by ~-—

Q.  What company or firm? .

A. We worked through Rifenburg, we worked through
Kubricky.

Q. As a subcontractor?

A. As a sub.

0. You indicated that thé farm road combined with
the wollastonite in the ditch of crossroad would cause
the water in the one photograph -- would cause the water
to come down on the road, is that correct, down
crossroad?

A. Say that again.

0. Let me see if I can find the photos. Becaﬁse I

did not have the photos when -- now I guess I need their

| photos;_




10
11
12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19

20
21

22

23

24
25

- T. DEYO - CX by MR. HARP

THE COURT: Counsel, I have photos.

P

MR. HARP: If he can establish -- let's see,

- they're my photos.

THE COURT: Looking for the photos that were

admitted --

MR, HARP: Yeah, A through F, there he
testified that in one photograph that the
woliastonite in the ditch caused the water to

flow down the crossroad. Can you show him the

photographs and maybe he can identify which one

it is?

THE COURT: Do you understand the question,

Mr. Deyo?
THE WITNESS: Please repeat the question.

Q. You testified that in one of them that you

observed the wollastonite in the ditch area which would

cause the water to flow down across the road, is that
correct? Isn't that correct? |
MR. COOK: I think I know whiéh -
MR. HARP: What number is this?
MR. COOK: C and F.
Q. Look at C and F. Can you tell how close those
photographs were taken to the culvert underneath

crossroad?
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C is approximately 80 to %0 feet away.

What's the other one?

s o

F, I'm not sure. |

Q. You testified_that the wollastonite in the ditch
would cause the water run down crossroad, did you not?

A. Well, it will. It'wiil because this ridge of '
material in the center of the photo would represent the
pottom of the ditch, and if that is the bottom of the
ditch then the water will rﬁn on the street side of that
ditch, which'Wiil'éfodé‘thé érossroad. -

Q.  The famm road.waé»not there, wouldn't the water
run out into the field?

A. It perhaps may..

Q. It perhaps may?

-A. With that wind row of dirt there or wollastonite
there it may not hit the field anyways as far as what
you're saying, run out into the field there. It will
probably have a different source of origin, but perhaps
not there.

Q. Can you tell me why you would builld a road six
feet higher than the elevation of crossroad to block the
fiowage of water out into the field?

A. | I don't understand your question.

Q. Why‘would you build a road six feet higher than
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crossroad to block water flowing ocut intc the field?

A. Well, that's a two-sided cquestion, but paﬁt of
your answer is going to be that NYSEG went in the line,
is going to be in one of these photos if you want to
reference that, and theilr line required 30 inches of
cover over the line. They established a grade where they
wanted their conduit. We needed to provide 30 inches of
cover over the NYSEG line. When you play both ends
against the middle, the top of the road was whexe 30
inches waé.required fbr ihe NYSEG line; ";

Q. So the NYSEG line was about three and a half feet

higher than crossroad?

A. Yes, it is.
Q. I thought you said it was buried in conduit?
A, It is.

Q. You buried conduit three and a half feet high
above the road?

A, We did.

Q. .And you're definitely saying that there is NYSEG
lines along crossroad; is that correct?

A. That is correct} and the south side of crossroad
there is a NYSEG line.

THE COURT: 3ir, you'éan't say‘anything.

You can speak to counsel privately.
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MR. HARP: 1I'm just trying to establish what
happened there relative to that line.
THE COURT: I understand.

Q. Now, the storm on, let's see, it was Valentine's
Day. Was that a northeaét storm, Noreaster they call it,
come from the northeast?

A. It came out of the sky, I don't know where it
came from. |

Q. You testified that it was a storm, you were
th@re; et cetera, but.you don't know Which direction it
came from, corfect?

A, We were there, we were working and it came out 5f
the sky. I wasn't interested in if it was a Noréaéter or

a wester or a souther or a California or —-

Q. Well, would.it make any difference?
A. No, it wouldn't have made any difference.
Q: And you also testified that in snowstorms your”

farm road would prevent drifting; that's not correct, is
it? Doesn't snow drift downward into valleys, et cetera?
That particular road didn't.

On that particular storm?

On any.particular storm this winter,

We only had two major storms up there, right?

P O p O P

What do you call a major?
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THE COURT: Well, let's not become
argumentative here. At least for the two
occasions that we know about.

Q. That there were'major storms, one in March and
one in February. Did you get permission from the town to
construct farﬁ road iﬁ an area that water flowed from the
drainage pipe?

A I don't und@rstand your question.

Q; Did you get any permission from tﬁe town to
construct the'fatm.roéds? -

A. The town was aware.

Q. I'm asking you did you get permission,ldid you
get authorization? I didn't ask wﬁeth@r they were aware.
Did you get p@rmiséion to coéstruét the farm rocads?

A. On private property, no, we did not.

THE COURT: Wait just a momentf They
presuppose a permission is necessary. He might
want to ask whethér or not he believed consent of
the town was necessary and then ask whether or
not he pursued that or sought that.

Q. Is there any basis for you to beiieve'that you
did not need permission from the towh?
MR; BRENNAN: Object to the form of the

question.
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THE COURT: 1I'll overrule the objection;
You know what he's asking?

THE WITNESS: If he's asking me that I know
that we need town permission for private
property, no, I don't require -- I don't feel
that we heeded permiésion to build a road on
private property. If that's what yourrquestion
is, that's my response.

But YOu did observe that water flowed from the

pipe through the same area. that you cométructed‘the farm

road, isn't that not correct?

MR. COOK: Objection, your Honor, that's not
his testimony.

THE COURT: Well, I'm going to sustain the
objection, and I think we've covered this ground.
MR. HARP: I have no further guestions.

THE COURT: I have a couple. Mr. Deyo, I
didn't have the other exhibits. On the exhibits
that were admitted through counsel, do any of
these show the area just beyond the culvert that
is depicted in Plaintiff's 4 and in Plaintiff's
3?7 And I'll show you Plaintiff's 3 and 4 which
purport to show both ends of a culvert. Are any

of those conditions shown in any of the exhibits
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that have recently been admitted?

THE WITNESS: Photo 3.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

THE WITNESS: Is right here in Exhibit B.

THE COURT: .Thank yoﬁ. Now, with regard to
Defendant's Exhibit B, you can't see whether the
culvert there is open or closed, can you?

| THE WITNESS: No, you can't, but you can
clearly see there's a heavy layer of wollastonite
fromlfhe.streéf fhat juét got déposiﬁed,prior to .
the manhole, ‘and if you do a reverse picture
which is on your left~hand, that would probably
be takén last year prior to the snowplowing.

THE COURT: To your knowledge, what 1s the
condition of what is depicted in Plaintiff's 3
presently, is it covered like that?

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: How long has it rémained that
way, to YOUI kﬁowledge?

THE WITNESS: To my knowledge, since the
snowplowing season started, Novemberish,
Decemberish of last year, I'm not sure what day
they had to send the piow_but for their first

excursion.
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THE COURT: And what is there in yoﬁr
opinion came from the snowplows; is that correct?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

THE COURT: And you desCribed this as
wollastonite; is that correct?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

THE COURT: And so that's what leads you to
your conclusion that it was the snowplows that
did that; is that correct? |

THE.WITNESS: That is correcﬁp‘l‘ |

THE COURT: If that's the case, do you have |
any knowledge whether or not this occurred before
the construction of the family.farm roads?

THE WITNESS: It would have been done after
the road, because that road was completed late
November, early December prior to snow
activities. This 1s one year of plowing. of what
happens when they plow that road.

THE COURT: But Mr. Deyo, when they plow
that road, I mean, that's presumably a vearly
event; 1s that correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And in past yeaﬁs before the

construction of the family farm roads which are
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at an elevation higher, do you have any knowledge
to whether or not these same conditions occurred?

THE WITNESS: What happened was instead of
throwing it up on the farm road, would fall down
on the ground and then basically run into the ag
field. |

THE COURT: Okay. Are you saying that when
it was -- when the farm road didn't exist it
didn't cover it because it went beyond it?

THE WITNESS: That is correct, it wen_é:l'wm

THE COURT: And it can no longer do that
because of the roadway that's there?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

THE COURT: Now —-

THE WITNESS: We also have an 18 inch pipe
below that manhole that is perforated and it goes
underneath crossroad.

THE COURT: That's what I'm getting at.
What do you have in place with regafd to the
drainage if this situation arises?

THE WITNESS:. There's an 18 inch tile
perforated and it goes through that manhole. TIf
yvou pull the covern off.that manhole and look down

23, 24 feet, you're going to see a two foot tile,
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goes right through underneath crossroad.
On the other side of crossroad you're going

to see another manhole. You're golng to see

another structure. You pull the cover off that,

you look down, you're going to see that that pipe

continues to go through the ag field.

If you'd get to Whalens Ray Road which is a
different road, you're going to pull the cover
off and vyou're going to see it 18, 20 feet below
Whaléns Béy.Rbad.. Iflybu‘ré’going to go 5n the
north side of Whalens Ray Road, see another
manhole open up, the cover, there's goihg to be
another pipe, 18 inch pipe, same pipe continues
nerthward to the Perry-Lewis boundary line.

THE COURT: Tell me what happens if there's
a Heavy rainfall and this part of the culvert is

obstructed, so to speak, because of the

conditions in which the town has placed these

matters, and-since the road is there it falls
back on the culvert. What happens to this water?

THE WITNESS: This water gets absorbed into
the stone, goes through and then down to the 18
inch pipe.

‘THE COURT: That's what you're referring to?
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THE WITNESS: Yes. And then from that 18
inch‘pipe it goes down to the Redway Swamp, which
is not in any of these photos.

THE COURT: When you constructed this, did
you do so in conjunction with a civil engineer?

THE WITNESS: Ask that question --

THE COQURT: Thé road with regard the
drainage system that you have here and what you
used. |

THE-WITSESSQ .Theie.was a private consultant
at the time that thai pipe was put in. That pipe
was put in about 51X —— five, maybe six years.

 THE COURT: What wouldshaﬁpen in extreme
situation, an uﬁusual occurrence, é 1 in 25 year
event or something along those lines?

THE WITNESS: Are we‘talkiﬁg a three inch
rainfall, are we talking a five inch rainfall?

THE COURT: We're talking an excessive
rainfall as you define it.

THE WITNESS: What would probably happen on
a three inch rain event is the top of crossroad
would erode. This photo of —— and I will give it
back to you of Exhibit A.

THE COURT: Thank you.
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THE WITNESS: The right side of Exhibit A,
you're going to see erosion and you're going to
see a ditch. Iflyou had a three inch event that
would grow, probably close the top of that road
off and deposit all that down in the bottom of
where the town's culvert is as we see it.

THE COURT: You said close the top of the
roads off did you say?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, it would. It would.
There WQuld be going washers, thefe'slno ﬁéferl
bars in that photo. There's no diversion photos
of a check,lany di&ersion measures of a silk or
sediment control. There's no indication of that
and you get that much rain, that réad will fail.
Prior on the top down first.

THE COURT: Are you in the.position to know
how often that can happen? |

THE WITNESS: No way of knowing.

THE COURT: I didn't think so. Thank you.
Any more questions?

MR. HARP: I have scme.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. HARP:

Q.

You brought up a point there that's very

interesting. You say that there's an 18 inch perforated
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pipe underneath crossroad? |
A. Yes, it is.

Q And this was installed five to six years ago?

A. Yes, it is.

0 Did you construct it?

A We did.

Q. Did you get permission from the town to dig

through or go underneath -

A, Yes.

Q. -— crossroad?

A. We did, we did.

Q. Do you know if.a copy'exists of that pérmission?
A. I believe it was a ﬁerbal.

Q. You ~— in other erds; you didn't have written
permission to go in the right-of-way, dig up the road; is
that correct? You dug the road or did you jack it under?

A, No, we dug the road. 2And I may havela copy of
that, if on@‘@xists, I would have it, but I don't know
that'we-were givén a writtén pefmissidn other Ehan a
verbal. Same with Whalens Bay Road. Whalens Bay Road-is

a county road. We were given permission to dig Whalens

"Bay Road. It was closed --~ different issue, but same

time we were given permission to close Whalens Bay Road,

dig Whalens Bay Road, put our pipe in and put the road
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back together.

Q. You say it's a county road. Did you get oral
permission there too?

A. Yes, we did, that would've been from Mr. Buck.

0. You are aware that the Highway Department
requires a written permit to go within the right-of-way
of a county road, don't you?

MR. COOK: Objection, your Honor, county
road is not the subiject of this litigation.

THE COﬂRT: Well} thaﬁ'é‘ﬁrue, but hé.
testified to the consent fhat he received with
regard to a county road as an example with regard
to this matter.

Are you aware Or not, can you answer that
question?

THE WITNESS: I wasn't aware we needed
written permission other than a verbal.

MR. HARP: No further questions.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. COOK: Nothing, your Honor.

THE COURT: You may step down, thank you.
Any other witnesses?

- MR.:COOK: I have none.

THE COURT: We're going to break for lunch,
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come back at 1:00.

MR. HARP: Your Honor; can we give you some
argument or not?

THE COURT: Probably do that when we get
back.

MR, HAR?: Oh, okay.

MR. COOK: Your Honor, I'm not sure our
cloéing argument would be very long at all.

THE COURT: Do you want to just do it now
then?r - B | -

MR. COCK: I think we probably can.

THE COURT: All right, let's do it.

MR. HARP: I'll try to.do it very, very
briefly. Just cite you to the cases that which
control the situation, the Village of Schoharie
versus Coons case involved -- is a 1970 Appellate
Division decision and it was affirmed by the
Court of Appeals. It involved Mr. Coons blocking .
of f some drain -- under drain off into a swampy
érea.

Prior to 1970, most people who worked in
this area were of the view that it had to be in a
swale or some other clear form of area where the

water flowed. Clearly the swamp area was not
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such an area, but they did demonstrate thét water
fldwed from the village drainage system out into
this swamp area and Mr. Coons was required to
restore the drainage.

In the case of Dutcher versus the Town of
Shandaken, which I'was losing counsel on, my
client, Mr. Dutcher, placed material abcut 20
feet from the highway and away from the drainage
ditch which basically had been covered over by
plowing and other things of.soil 5ver ﬁéﬁy.yéaxs,
but it was about 20 feet away, and the Court
ruled in that case that the drainage rights had
been established énd that Mr. Dutcher had no
fight to interfere with them, and that the
drainage area is part of the highway system and
is required to'preserve the public;s right of
passage over the highway.

And they certainly -—- the use of drainage

~area which Mr. Deyo clearly testified to that

water did flow out into the fields for many
y@ars,_wé've established, and the town has a
right to have‘som@on@ get their permission before
they interfere with ény drainage, and clearly

Mr. Deyo testified that in a heavy rain the
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water's going to end up back damaging crossroad.

When proper notices were given, the law goes
back, goes back into the 1800's, 319 and it was
clearly designed to get obstructions and
interféreﬁces with the proper maintenance and use
of a highway away, clear it out of the way very
rapidly.

Thié case has been pending since January and

fortunately we didn't have a very severe storm.

- We probably won't get snow any time this summer,

buf if this case would have dragged on, we could
have a problem there. The basic things that
we're asking for is that the drainage right be
re~established clearly, in other words, that.
there be‘eith@r a pipe which is A, maintained
that goes out into the field or that they're B,

restored in an open area, that the water will be

-able to flow so that it doesn't flow across the

road.

THE COURT: Are you saying then that if‘théy
were to ensure that the —- that it was left open
that that wouid be satisfactbry to the town?

MR. HARP: They could put a pipe through

there to pass the water down under past the farm
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road. The other factor is the lowering that we
are seeking, the lowering down of the farm roads
so that they are not higher than --

THE COURT: That would be a drastic remedy
and really should only occur after a full and
complete hearing.

MR. HARP: But right now we're very
concerned about heavy rains and we have not
experienced —— if we had experienced that
éituation, why would ﬁhe materiéi havélgonelout
into the fields all these years when we did have
heavy rains?

So obviously the fields were used and were a
dréinage area for umpteen years. I don't know
when, but it was certainly more than ten years
ago, and you don't normally build a road higher
to stop leaching‘or dzainaqe, yoﬁ build it so
that it is going down and blocking it downward.

We don't understand how you can possibly do |
that. 2and with respéct to the right-of-way,

there were assumptions made and that's clear that

‘the law and usage and that -- I'll take you to a

case relative to plowing that says the plowing

area is also part of the road facility so that
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there's no question about that.

The case of Gray versus the Town of
Oppenheim, 289 AD2d 743, was a 2001 Third
Department case said that this disposition of
plowed snow, et cetera, in the snow storage area
are part of a highway maintenance requirement and
a part of an area that's part of the highway.

S0 we believe that we can't endangef the
People of the Town of Essex in case there is a
very.heavy‘réinstorm; Thefé‘iélno assurance that

it's going to not cause problems relative to

' crossroad.

THE COURT: I appreciate'what‘you're saying,
but do we kﬁow what kind of rainstorm would be
required in which there could be a problem? I
mean, the proof here today doésn‘t indicate at
what point this would become a problem, does it?

MR. HARP: Well, the only thing I can say to
you, your Honoxr, is that in the Dutchet case,

after the material was placed out into the fields

there was a hurricane with about six inches of

rain and the drainage facility still flushing and
the Court said even that required the material to

be removed from that area. So I don't know,
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rain --—

~THE COURT: But we're not even sure of the
frequency of such occurrences. And I respect
yvour point, which is the fact it could occur
should be sufficient for some kind of relief is
what you're arguing to me; 1s that correct?

MR. HARP: That's correct. But it's also
correct that you don't normally wait to have a
fire‘télésﬁébiiéh a fii@ départmént, yoﬁ.téke.éﬁd
you iook at the potential,‘and the potential is
that crossroad could be unusable or we could have
a disaster like they have down near Binghamton
where a car drove déwn the road, thought the road
was there and it wasn't there, and two little
éhildren were killed.

We have a right and théy’had the obligation
to seek our permission to interfere with fhat
drainage aﬁea befor@ they put it in thére and
they wére warned. They sald we were aware, ves,
we were aware that they were putting those roads
in and we told them not to puﬁ themrthere and not
to block the drainage. So we request that we

meet I believe all the criteria relative to
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issuance of a preliminary injunction.
| THE COURT: Thank you. Counsel?

MR, BRENNAN: Your Honor, the town's
argument seems to be predicated on numerous
assumptions. Possible explanation —-

THE COURT: Except for one in which your own
witness testified that if we receive the
equivalent to the 3 inch rainfall that that road
would be flooded, wasn't that correct?

- MR. BRENNAN: Well, he indicated that,

Judge, but I'm not sure about his qualifications

to do that.

THE COURT: And I understand that. Because
that's the difficulty I‘m‘héving with the case
overall. There's really been arguably very

little expert testimony, if you want to call it

© that.

MR. BRENNAN: Your Honor, I didn't
understand Mr..ﬁeyo's argument to be precisely
that. Mr. Deyo indicated the manner of
mainﬁenance of that road, et cetera, and I
app;eciate the Court étating what Mr. Deyo said
with regard to the potential of the 3 inch

rainfall. Mr. Deyo, I did not understand his
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testimony to be that that was caused by the
construction of the farm roads.

He's indicated that, in fact, the town
itself by the manner in whicﬁ 1t operates and
maintains the rcad has, in fact, blocked the
culvert. He's also testified that, in fact, that
the farm road as constructed is made of a
material --—

THE COURT: But it appears he's blocked the

culvert bécauée of the existence of the higher

elevated farm road.

MR. BRENNAN: I don't believe that's the
testimony, your Honor. I believe that the
testimopy of Mr. Deyo is that at the end of th@
culvert was blocked by the town's maintenance
methods, the grading, et cetera, in that area.

Now, obviously water, even in the photograph
offered by the tbwn, shows that there is a wet
area where it'é coming to the surface. If you'd
look at the various photographs, you can see that
there is a ditch along there and I don't think
it's proper to speéulate as to'what the total
rainfall that could have.

Yes, if you got enough rain, but the
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situation here is fhat Mr. Harp cites Dutcher.
Dutcher is predicated on éomething being
necessafy to preserve‘ﬁhe public's right of
passage. That's what the essence of that
decision 1is.

Now, we've had —- there's been speculation,
lot of snow, more snow in prior vears. There's
nothing here in this record to show that there
was any less snowfall than there normally is in a
Year.‘ We’ve.ﬁadla.ﬁﬁowﬁall February 14th in- |
excéss of 30 inches. _Th@ testimpny here is there
was never any blockage of that road, any
interference whatsoever with the right of
passage. 

With regard to water passing through,

Mr. Deyo's testified as to the line that was

installed that this material that is used that is
permeable. It delays the passage of water
through it to allow it to disburse, but the farm
roads have been specifically constructed for the:
purpose of leﬁting water péss through them.
There is nothing to refute tﬁe fact that these
farm roads as constructed in this area was built

to the standards of the New York State Electric
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and Gas --

THE COURT: Shouldn't this really be
elicited thrbugh,thé uée of expert testimony?

MR. BRENNAN: Yes, it should be, Judge, and
I believe I know where the Court is going.. The |
Court is fully aware there are three elements
that must be satisfied in order for a preliminary
injunction to issue. We submit that none of
those three elements have been satisfied. The
burdéﬁ is on the town to show cleéi iikélihobd éf
success on the merits. The testimony of the
proof they have offered we submit is insufficient
to do that.

Further, they fail to satisfy the
requirement of irrepairable injury, and on the
balancihg of the equities and on the speculative
nature, th@ proof that the town has offered here
without really any evidence to substantiate the
conclusions, I think that the proof has failed to
justify the issuance of a preliminary injunction.

i wduld suggest to the Court that the Court
may wish to consider an expedited scheduling in
order that this matter could be finélly resolved,

but at this point, I submit that the proof is not
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sufficient to justify the issuance of a
preliminary injunction.

THE COURT': Thé:ak you. I've heard from
counsel here. I'm going to deny the request for
preiiminary injunction, but I'm doing so largely
because I'm going to need expert testimony at
trial and quiﬁe frankly, with such.testimony, I
méy have to reconsidér such rélief.

I am concerned about what's been alleged
here today, but as you note; Mr. Br@nnaﬁ, tﬁe
burden is on the movant here in a number'of ways,
and I don't think it's been estébiished
sufficiently or sufficiently for melto.issue Sﬁch
drastic relief.

I also note that in doing so, it may entail
a hardship to your client, which is that these
roads are now constructed, now .in place, and part
of the relief requested by the town is that those
roads be éffected so as to allow the requested
snow removal in extreme cases, and perhaps even
to assist with the drainage which woﬁldICOm@ by
through the culvert, but those matters are gﬁing
to have to awalit a’fmll trial'in regard to this

matter. On the record before me, I cannot issue
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the related relief. |

I'1l give you an expedited trial schedule
because I assume that there's not much else to do
other than to come forward at the time of trial.
What date can we have?

THE CLERK: How much time do you need before
the trial?"

THE‘COURT: ‘How much time do you want,
couple months?

.MR; BRENNAN:lli beiieﬁea couple monthe
would be adequate for us, your Honor.

MR. HARP: There is a deposition relative to
a Notice of Claim that is in May and that's a
month off already. ‘That would mean that we
wouldn't have any opportunity to do any EBTs
probably.

THE COURT: I will give you whatever You
want. It's your case, Mr. Harp. You want three’
months, you want four?

MR, HARP: Let's go four months.

MR. COOK: July, your Honcr, I'm on trial,

THE COURT: How about August?

THE CLERK: August‘dete? August 8th is your

August date here.
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MR. HARP: As long as we complete this
before the wintertime.
" THE COURT: How about Septermber?
THE CLERK: September 12th.
THE COURT: Mr. Brennan, you'll submit an
order in connection with this application?
MR. BRENNAN: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: On notice.
MR. BRENNAN: Yes, sir.
VTHE COGRT& All right. I thank ybﬁ. fhat-
will conclude our proceedings.
MR. HARP: Do you want a note of issue
filed, your Honor?
THE COURT:‘ Yes. I think you -- would you?
Actually, file it iight after you complete your

discovery because I don't want to get here and

have that raised as a barrier to us proceeding

with our trial.

MR. HARP: Okay, thank vyou.
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